
   

 

 

 

 

  

MADISON COUNTY  
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

WEDNESDAY JANUARY 24, 2024 
PUBLIC MEETING 



 
 

Madison County Planning & Zoning ~ 134 E Main St. Suit 208 Rexburg ID 83440 ~ (208)-359-6207 ~  pz@co.madison.id.us 
 

All meetings are open to the public and can be viewed electronically via Zoom. Please scan the QR code to 
access the public meeting via Zoom.  
 
Please contact the Planning and Zoning Office prior to any meeting if assistance is required for disabled 
persons planning to attend. 
 

MADISON COUNTY  
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

PUBLIC MEETING 
Wednesday January 24, 2024 

6:30 PM 
Madison County Courthouse - Commissioner’s Room 

 

AGENDA 
 

6:30 p.m.  Welcome: Troy Thurgood – Planning Commission Chair 
Pledge of Allegiance              
Roll Call Attendance 
BOCC Meeting Review 
 

6:35 p.m.  Routine Business: Approve January 10, 2024 Public Meeting Minutes 
 
 
 

6:40 p.m.  Public Hearing: Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designation Change 
            Breck Barton 
           Ag Land to Rural Cluster 
 
Zone Change 
           Breck Barton 
          Agriculture to Transitional Agriculture 
 
 

7:00 p.m.  Work Session: Comprehensive Plan Update Discussion 
 
 
 

  Adjourn: Troy Thurgood – Planning Commission Chair 
 
Upcoming Public Meetings:            
          February 14, 2024 
                TBD  
          
          February 28, 2023 
                 TBD 

 
 

mailto:pz@co.madison.id.us


 

 
January 10, 2024 

Public Meeting Minutes 
  



 
MADISON COUNTY 

Planning & Zoning Commission 
and Board of County Commissioners 

Joint Public Meeting Minutes 
January 10, 2024 

 

Above is a summary and outline of the January 10, 2024 joint public meeting.  A recording of the 
public meeting can be obtained in the Planning and Zoning office upon request. 

Meeting Commenced: 7:00 p.m. 

Present: 
Board of County Commissioners: 

Todd Smith, Board Chair 
Brent Mendenhall, Commissioner 
Dustin Parkinson, Commissioner 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission Members: 

Arlene Anderson, Commission Vice Chair 
Eric Miller 
Kort Black 
Mark Hansen 
Paul Weekes 
Shane Ruebush 
Sharon Oakey 
Troy Thurgood, Commission Chair 
 

County Staff: 
Gary Armstrong, Planning Administrator 
Melissa VanSlochteren, Admin Support 
Troy Evans, Attorney 
 

Administrative Business –  
2023 Year in Review by planning staff Melissa VanSlochteren 
Planning Administrator gave an update on the Comprehensive Plan.  

 
Discussion Items –  
 Board of Commissioner’s gave a brief summary of things they are currently working on.  

• Landfill Project 
• Airport Relocation 
• County Asset Evaluation Project 
• Potential Fairgrounds Relocation 
• County Fiber Project 

 
 Board gave commission ideas on what they would like to see in the coming year.  

• Complete the Comprehensive Plan Update 
• Discuss and decide how to address Townsites 
• Simplify County Code to align with Comprehensive Plan 

 
Meeting Adjourned: 8:30 p.m. 



COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CHANGE 
Ag Land to Rural Cluster 

Breck Barton 
  



STAFF REPORT 
  



 

Madison County 

Planning and Zoning 
Application Summary and Staff Report 

Application Type: Amendment to Comprehensive 
Plan Future Land Use Map 

Applicant: Breck Barton 
Surveyor/Engineer:  
Location: 4700 W 1000 N, Rexburg 
Date for Consideration: January 24, 2024 

Project Description: The subject property is approximately 37.5 acres acres, and is currently 

identified as Agriculture on the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 

Map. Lands to the East of the parcel are identified for Rural Cluster in 

the Comprehensive Plan. The application seeks to classify all of the 

parcel as Rural Cluster on the Future Land Use Map.  

Property Issues (floodplain, 
slopes, environmental, etc…) 

The parcel is within the Flood Plain.  

Staff Recommendation: The Planning Administrator has found that the lands proposed for 

RURAL CLUSTER generally meet the description found in the 

Comprehensive Plan. The Planning Administrator recommends 

APPROVAL of the application to change the Comp Plan Future Land 

Use Map, as indicated in the application.  

Possible Motions 
Approval 
Having found that the application 

generally meets the criteria for an 

amendment to the Comprehensive 

Plan as outlined in Madison 

County Code 102-1, therefore I 

move to recommend APPROVAL 

of the application from Breck 

Barton to change the 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land 

Use Map, applying Rural Cluster 

classification to the 37.5-acre 

parcel as proposed in application 

materials received December 22, 

2023. 

Denial 
Having found that the application 

does NOT meet the criteria for an 

amendment to the Comprehensive 

Plan as outlined in Madison 

County Code 102-1, therefore I 

move to recommend DENIAL of 

the application from Breck Barton 

to change the Comprehensive Plan 

Future Land Use Map, applying 

Rural Cluster classification to the 

37.5-acre parcel as proposed in 

application materials received 

December 22, 2023 for the 

following reasons: 

1. 

2. 

 

Tabled 
I move to TABLE the the 

application from Breck Barton to 

change the Comprehensive Plan 

Future Land Use Map, applying 

Rural Cluster classification to the 

37.5-acre parcel as proposed in 

application materials received 

December 22, 2023.and request 

additional information from the 

applicant, including: 

1. 

2. 

 

  



Description of Agricultura Lands and Rural Cluster Lands as described in the Madison County Comprehensive Plan, 

2008, pages 65 and 66.  

Agriculture  

This land use category includes lands used primarily for grazing, crop farming, hobby farming, and other related 

uses. These lands are intended to remain in their customary agricultural use for the foreseeable future 

Rural Cluster  

This land use designation includes lands where residential development is allowed at an overall base density of 

one unit per two acres. Clustering of development onto smaller lot sizes, while maintaining large tracts of open 

land is encouraged, and may even be required for subdivision projects over a certain size. 

Hearing Factors When Considering an Amendment to the Comprehensive Plan – Madison County Code 102-1 

(a) Comprehensive Plan. The Comprehensive Plan Components, Idaho Code, § 67-6508 et seq., outlines the purposes 

of a comprehensive plan land use map change as follows: The commission, in deciding whether to approve or 

deny an application to amend the county comprehensive plan land use map, must analyze whether the amendment 

would be compatible with the individual components the legislature requires counties to consider when preparing, 

implementing, reviewing, and updating a comprehensive plan. Not all may apply.  

1. Property rights. An analysis of provisions which may be necessary to ensure that land use policies, restrictions, 

conditions and fees do not violate private property rights, adversely impact property values or create unnecessary 

technical limitations on the use of property and analysis as prescribed under the declarations of purpose in Idaho 

Code, ch. 80, titl. 67.  

2. Population. A population analysis of past, present, and future trends in population including such characteristics 

as total population, age, sex, and income.  

3. School facilities and transportation. An analysis of public school capacity and transportation considerations 

associated with future development.  

4. Economic development. An analysis of the economic base of the area including employment, industries, 

economies, jobs, and income levels.  

5. Land use. An analysis of natural land types, existing land covers and uses, and the intrinsic suitability of lands for 

uses such as agriculture, forestry, mineral exploration and extraction, preservation, recreation, housing, 

commerce, industry, and public facilities. A map shall be prepared indicating suitable projected land uses for the 

jurisdiction.  

6. Natural resources. An analysis of the uses of rivers and other waters, forests, range, soils, harbors, fisheries, 

wildlife, minerals, thermal waters, beaches, watersheds, and shorelines.  

7. Hazardous areas. An analysis of known hazards as may result from susceptibility to surface ruptures from 

faulting, ground shaking, ground failure, landslides or mudslides; avalanche hazards resulting from development 

in the known or probable path of snowslides and avalanches, and floodplain hazards.  

8. Public services, facilities, and utilities. An analysis showing general plans for sewage, drainage, power plant sites, 

utility transmission corridors, water supply, fire stations and firefighting equipment, health and welfare facilities, 

libraries, solid waste disposal sites, schools, public safety facilities and related services. The plan may also show 

locations of civic centers and public buildings.  

9. Transportation. An analysis, prepared in coordination with the local jurisdiction(s) having authority over the 

public highways and streets, showing the general locations and widths of a system of major traffic thoroughfares 

and other traffic ways, and of streets and the recommended treatment thereof. This component may also make 

recommendations on building line setbacks, control of access, street naming and numbering, and a proposed 

system of public or other transit lines and related facilities including rights-of-way, terminals, future corridors, 

viaducts and grade separations. The component may also include port, harbor, aviation, and other related 

transportation facilities.  

10. Recreation. An analysis showing a system of recreation areas, including parks, parkways, trail ways, river bank 

greenbelts, beaches, playgrounds, and other recreation areas and programs.  

11. Special areas or sites. An analysis of areas, sites, or structures of historical, archeological, architectural, 

ecological, wildlife, or scenic significance.  



12. Housing. An analysis of housing conditions and needs; plans for improvement of housing standards; and plans for 

the provision of safe, sanitary, and adequate housing, including the provision for low-cost conventional housing, 

the siting of manufactured housing and mobile homes in subdivisions and parks and on individual lots which are 

sufficient to maintain a competitive market for each of those housing types and to address the needs of the 

community.  

13. Community design. An analysis of needs for governing landscaping, building design, tree planting, signs, and 

suggested patterns and standards for community design, development, and beautification.  

14. Agriculture. An analysis of the agricultural base of the area including agricultural lands, farming activities, 

farming-related businesses and the role of agriculture and agricultural uses in the community.  

15. Implementation. An analysis to determine actions, programs, budgets, ordinances, or other methods including 

scheduling of public expenditures to provide for the timely execution of the various components of the plan.  

16. National interest electric transmission corridors. After notification by the public utilities commission concerning 

the likelihood of a federally designated national interest electric transmission corridor, prepare an analysis 

showing the existing location and possible routing of high voltage transmission lines, including national interest 

electric transmission corridors based upon the United States department of energy's most recent national electric 

transmission congestion study pursuant to sections 368 and 1221 of the energy policy act of 2005. "High-voltage 

transmission lines" means lines with a capacity of 115,000 volts or more supported by structures of 40 feet or 

more in height.  

  



Proximity Map and Proposed Map Amendment 

 

The application is to change the parcel to Rural Cluster, to be later zoned as Trans Ag.  

  

Dark green indicates land identified as Agriculture in the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map. Lighter green 

represents lands identified as Rural Cluster.  

 

 

Staff Report prepared by Gary Armstrong, Planning Administrator 

Subject Parcel 



APPLICATION 
  



PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT
134 E Main Suite 208 Rexburg ID 83440
Phonc (208)359-6207
PZ(rlco.madison.id.us

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CHANGE APPLICATION

SUBMITTALS:
The review process will require a minimum of 15 working days. Once application is lully reviewed and
dcemed complete, a public hearing will be scheduled for the next available hcaring date. Applicants will
be required to meet with Planning and Zoning Administrator before the Public Hearing will take placc.
All information called for on this form shall be required for a complete application and no incomplete

lication will begin the review process. Completed application must also be accompanied with thea

subsequent lte of $600.00.

A PPLICANT/OWNER CONTACT INFORMATION

APPLICAIIIT:

Namc Breck Barton

Phonc: 208,680-3143

Email brekbhb@gmail.com

Mailing Address: PO Box 699

Signature Date 12122123

()\1,NE R:

Name
Phonc
F-nrail

Mailing Address
Signaturc Dalc

*iflou are not the owner ofthe propert) plelse attrch rn rmdrvit of legal interest to vour gpplicstion, oru second

,pplicarlt/owner page. *

REQUIRED ATTATCHMENTS

Additional attachments mav be required on a case bv case basis

El Warranty Deed - can be obtained in the Madison County Clerk's office.

fl Parcel Vicinity Map - available from the Madison County Assessor's office

E Fee Payment - cash. check, or card

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CHANGE HEARING FACTORS

Comprehensive Plan. The Comprehensive Plan Componenls, Idaho Code, g 67-65011 et seq., oullines the
purposes of a comprehensive plan land use map change as follows: The commission. in deciding whether
to approve or deny an application to amend the county comprehensive plan land use map, must analyze
whether the amendment would be compatible with the individual componcnts thc legislature requircs
counties to consider when preparing, implementing. reviewing. and updating a comprchensive plan. Not
all may apply.

The Hearing Factors will include. but not bc limited to thc tbltowing:



Property rights. An analysis ofprovisions which may be necessary to ensure thal land use
policies, restrictions, conditions and fees do not violate private property rights, adversely impact
property values or create unnecessary technical limitations on the use of propeny and analysis as

prescribed under the declarations ofpurpose in ldaho Code, Ch. 80, title. 67.

2. Population. A population analysis ofpast, prescnt, and future trcnds in population including such
characteristics as total population, age, sex. and income.

3. School facilities and transportation. An analysis ofpublic-school capacity and transportation
considerations associated with future development.

4. Economic dcvelopment. An analysis ofthe economic base ofthc area including cmployment,
industries, economies. jobs. and income levels.

5. Land use. An analysis ofnatural land tlpes, existing land covers and uses. and the intrinsic
suitability of lands for uses such as agriculture, forestry, mineral exploration and extraction,
preservation, rccreation, housing, commerce, industry. and public fhcilities. A map shall be
prepared indicating suitable projected land uses for the jurisdiction.

6. Natural resources. An analysis ofthe uses ofrivers and other waters. forests, range, soils, harbors.
fisheries, wildlife, minerals, thermal waters, beaches. watersheds. and shorelines.

7. Hazardous areas. An analysis ofknown hazards as may result lrom susceptibility to surfacc
ruptures fiom faulting, ground shaking, ground failure, landslidcs or mudslides: avalanchc
hazards resulting from development in the known or probable path ofsnowslidcs and avalanches,
and floodplain hazards.

ll. Public services, facilities, and utilities. An analysis showing general plans fot sewage, drainage,
power plant sites, utility transmission conidors, waler supply, fire stations and firefighting
equipment, health and welfare facilities, Iibraries, solid waste disposal sites. schools, public safety
facilities and related services. The plan may also show locations ofcivic ccnters and public
buildings.

9. Transportation. An analysis, prepared in coordination with the local jurisdiction(s ) having
authority over the public highways and streets, showing the general locations and widths ofa
system of major traffic lhoroughfares and other traffic ways, and of streets and the recommended
treatment thcrcoi This component may also make recommendations on building line setbacks,
control ofacccss. street naming and numbering, and a proposcd systcm ofpublic or other transit
lines and related facilities including rights-of-way, terminals. firture corridors. viaducts and grade
separations. The component may also include port, harbor, aviation, and other related
transportation facilities.

10. Recreation. An analysis showing a system of rccreation areas, including parks, parkwavs, trail
ways, river bank greenbelts, beaches, playgounds, and other rccreation areas and programs.

I L Special areas or sites. An analysis ofareas, sites, or structures ofhistorical. archeological,
architectural, ecological, wildlife. or scenic signiticance.

12. Housing. An analysis ofhousing conditions and nccds; plans for improvement ofhousing
standards; and plans for the provision ofsafe, sanitary, and adequatc housing, including the
provision for low-cost conventional housing, the siting of manufactured housing and mobilc
homes in subdivisions and parks and on individual lots which are sufficient to maintain a
competitive market for each ofthose housing types and to address the needs of the community



13. Community design. An analysis ofneeds for goveming landscaping, building design, tree
planting, signs, and suggested patterns and standards for community design, development, and
beautification.

14. Agriculture. An analysis ofthe agricultural base oflhc area including agricultural lands, farming
activities, farming-related businesses and the role ofagriculture and agricultural uses in the
community.

I 5. lmplementation. An analysis to dctcrminc actions, programs. budgets, ordinances, or othcr
methods including scheduling of public expenditures to provide for the timely execution ofthe
various components ofthc plan.

16. National interest electric transmission coridors. After notification by the public utilities
commission concerning the likelihood ofa federally designated national interest electric
transmission corridor. prepare an analysis showing the existing Iocation and possible routing of
high voltage transmission lines, including national interest elcctric transmission corridors based
upon the United States departmcnt ofenergy's most recent national electric transmission
congestion study pursuant to sections 368 and l22l ofthc cnergy policy act of2005. "High-
voltage transmission lines" means lines with a capacity of I 15.000 volts or more supported by
structures of40 feet or more in height.

See Madison Countv Unified Develooment Code Ch. 102 Heainp Factors

PARCEL INFORMATION

l an.v que.stions are not applicable, pletse insert N/A on torresponding line

Sitc Address (il alrytliathlc) 4700 w 1000 N

( ity Rexburg Statc ID zip 83440
Parccl Number(s) RP06N39E167203
Total Acreage

Subdilision N/A Lot Block:
Zonc Agriculture ( ou1p Plau Dcsignalion Agriculture - requesting to rural cluster
ls the'parcel locatcd in thc lrloodplain'l Yes
f)oes the property contain any streams, rivers. lakes or wetlands? No
Is thc Parcel adjacent to any agriculture activities'l Yes

NATURE OF REQUEST

What is the existing usc ofthe property involved Farmland
What is the conl lan dcsi u arc Ltcslio11 RuralCluster
How will the use ofthe propcrty change ifa land usc
dcsignation change is pcrnrircd'l Potential to give building lots to kids

schools'lHou will the uestcd chan ac1 the surroundI No channge
lndicate ifthe water. septic,
the proposed comprehensire
public facilities and sen ices

fi re, police, streets/road
plan land use designati
will be adequate?

s and schools that serve thc area are adequate to serve any dcvelopment under
on. lfthey are not adequatc to serve. what measures are proposed to assure that

Private wells and septics

farm ground. some residenliallndicatc rhe surroundin land usc de ions within 300 l'cct:Mo



Will all uses permitted within the zone be compatible with the area'l

Ihe commission may address other points than those discussed abore, but a narrative addressing at least these
applicable points *ill assist in processing )'otr applicatiotl.

I consent to this application and allow Planning and Zoning staff to enter the property for site inspections relared to
this application.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Signature of Applicant: Aa,,a- Date /z.z.z--4
Signature ofOwner: 'Ahfr Date: /z-zz-.ry5
Signature of Co-Applicant: Date

Permit #: fee Total: Date Fee Received:

?t'tz- tt', t\ruj llltt,ln

lves



In tlmril; a6ltltT
lErlrto, Mt, Dllto
7ltir}?E2 OfrltAI to. dh.r:2
iEIt:LttEy
lcllln t*1t- 4.,
EablErqn/,!--dx

QI,IITCLAIM DEEI)

ORDER NO.: 624556

FOR VALI'E R-ECEIVED,

Brra R. Rigby, r mrrried mrn dedlng witt ht rolc rnd 3eptnte prolErty lnd
Cherl Rigby hk rpouse

do(es) hcreby convcy, releese, rcrnise and forover quitclaim unto

Jrcob C).rll Donrhoo tlld Leslie Atrn Donrhoo, hulbrtrd rtrd wlfe

whose clrretrt address is: I l3 I N 4000 W, Rcxburg, ID 83,140

the following descriM pr€mises;

se€ attachod lcgal descripton

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said premiscs, unto the said grante€s, hcirs and assigns
forcvsr,

Datd: Ootabrr. 24,2022

B*-t 3
Brrt R. Rigby

the

St8tc of Idrho ) ss

County of Mrdilon)

On Ur #Sli-dry of October, 2022, before me, tfte undenigDed, r Nobry public tr
rnd for said ltatq pcrso!8lly rpperred Bert R. Rlgby end Chcri Rtgby, known or
idcndficd to Ec to be thc pcrson(s) whose nrme(s) is/are subccrlbed to the withiD
Indrument
lN Wffi{ESS WHEREOF, I hrve hereurto let my hsDd rnd smxed my ofilcirl sesl
th€ dry rnd yerr ln lbis ccrtilicrte llrst lbove ttrrlttcn.

Notrry Public for the Stste of Idtho
Residing rt:
Commission Exnlre3: ReEidino in S'1. Anhoiv. lD

--GromGonE-;d'r€sffS2023

AIISON SANIA

on'Dissjon #2142r'c

This irctisri.nt lllcd
.3 an accorrrEdadon onlY.
It h.i dot b.ctl at.ttrl'i.d

a. ro Iti €xccutlonl ln ur.btlity
6' .lt€.t on titlc.

0ku^'.-flrn/,,
cb;dlugby 0 

-



Forycgy_

BART RIGBY to JACOB IX)NAIIOO
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Part of the South€ast % of Section 16, Township 6 North, Range 39 Eas Boisc Meridian, Madison
County, Idaho, described as follows;

Commencing at the Southeast comer of Scction I 6, Township 6 North, Range 39 East and runniDg thenc€
N 00''00'29" W along the East line of said SectioL 658.E0 fect; Tbence S 890'50'55" W,,t140.00 feet ro a
sa S/8inch reioforced iron rod, markod PLS 13933, also being the Truc Point of Beginning;

Thence continuing S 89"50'55" W along an fencc line, 352.01' feet to a sct 5/8 inch Rcbar, ma*ed PLS
13933;

Thence N 45"37'04" E, 492.46 feet to a set 5/8inch reinforced iron rod, marted PLS 13933;

Thence S 0Oo00'29" E, 167.51 feet to a set 5/8inch reinforccd iron ro4 marked PLS 13933;

Thenc€ continuing S 00'0029" E, 176.00 feet to the Polrt of Bcginnlng.

Parcel containing + 1.39 Acr€s

RKB/ MJI{

August 15, 2022

F:'R€xbur8\oBriksro('r.,r'Misc sr'. ey\0 r -22-og | 4o22 Jsc(*, Doo$oo\.kgarsvs.oh l},ahm t-or splir LeSar.d<,cr



Tln*g"*

PURCHASE RECEIPT

Madison County Plannlng and Zonlng
134 East Main Street. Suite 208
Rexburg lD 83440
(208)ssF6207
OTC Local Ref lD: 90421546
'1212212023 11:32 AM

Your credit card or bank statement will show a charge from MadisonP&2.

Status:

Customer Name:

Type:

Credit Card Number

Items

APPROVED

BARTON/BRECK

NrasterCard
*" *" '"" 8658

Quantity TPE Order lD Total Amount

PH-Zone Change Application

Note: Barton

1 61303188 $600.00

PH-Comprehensive Plan Amendment 1 61303188 $600.00

Total remitted to the Madison County Planning and Zoning $1.200.00

Access ldaho Fee 1 61303188 $36.00

TotalAmount Chargsd $1,236.00

Signature

To offer lhe convenience of using your bank card, a service fee of 3% has been added to your
transaction. This fee goes to our third-party provider, ldaho,gov. The County does not keep any portion
of this fee.



WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE 
  



January 12,2024

GaryArmstrong
Madison County Planning & Zoning
134 Main Street, Suite 208
Rexburg, lD 83440

Sincerely,

Marilyn R asmussen
Rigby Family Holdings, LLC

Dear Mr. Armstrong:

I am just writing this note to thank you for answering my questions to the best of your
ability prior to a public hearing regardtng the zone change request made by Mr. Eiarton.
My brother Brent Rigby has met with Mr. Barton and he assured him that our roadway to
our property will not be used or obstructed in the future. Maintaining access to this
property is our only concern and I think my brother has resolved this issue. we will
respect the decision ot the commission knowing that the decision that is made will be in
the best interest of the neighborhood, the County and Mr. Barton.

JAN 1 7 2024

Madison Countu
P&Z and Building

RECEIVED



ZONE CHANGE 
Agriculture to Transitional Agriculture 

Breck Barton 
  



STAFF REPORT 
  



 

Madison County 

Planning and Zoning 
Application Summary and Staff Report 

Application Type: REQUEST ZONE CHANGE 
Applicant: Breck Barton 
Surveyor/Engineer:  
Location: 4700 W 1000 N, Rexburg 
Date for Consideration: January 24, 2024 

Project Description: The subject property is approximately 37.5 acres, and is currently 

identified as Agriculture on the Madison County Zoning Map. Lands to 

the East of the parcel are identified as Transitional Agriculture on the 

Madison County Zoning Map. The application is to change the zoning 

from Agriculture, to Transitional Agriculture.   

Property Issues (floodplain, 
slopes, environmental, etc…) 

The parcel is within the Flood Plain.  

Staff Recommendation: The Planning Administrator has found that the lands proposed for Trans 

Ag zoning meet the criteria and general scope of Trans Ag lands as 

described in Madison County Code Section 117-60 and is consistent 

with nearby and adjacent properties in the area. The Planning 

Administrator recommends APPROVAL of the application to change 

the zoning from Agriculture to Trans Ag . 

Possible Motions 
Approval 
Having Found that the application 

generally meets the criteria for 

Transitional Agriculture as 

outlined in Madison County Code 

117-60 and identified in the 

Hearing Factors outlined in 

Madison County Code 102-1, I 

move to recommend APPROVAL 

of the application from Breck 

Barton to change the zoning on 

approximately 37.5 acres of land 

from Agriculture and to Trans Ag, 

as proposed in application 

materials received December 22, 

2023. 
  

Denial 
Having Found that the application 

DOES NOT MEET the criteria 

for Transitional Agriculture as 

outlined in Madison County Code 

117-60 and identified in the 

Hearing Factors outlined in 

Madison County Code 102-1, I 

move to recommend DENIAL of 

the application from Breck Barton 

to change the zoning on 

approximately 37.5 acres of land 

from Agriculture and to Trans Ag, 

as proposed in application 

materials received December 22, 

2023 for the following reasons: 

1. 

2. 

 

Tabled 
I move to TABLE the application 

from Breck Barton to change the 

zoning on approximately 37.5 

acres of land from Agriculture to 

Trans Ag, as proposed in 

application materials received 

January 21, 2022and request 

additional information from the 

applicant, including: 

1. 

2. 

 

  



Description/Definition of Current and Proposed Zoning – Madison County Code Section 117-53 and 60 

Sec 117-52 Agricultural (AG) Zone 

1. Scope and purpose. The provisions of this section apply to the Agricultural (AG) Zone or designation. The purpose 

of the Agricultural (AG) Zone or designation is to provide for and protect agricultural lands and uses. All other uses 

will be considered secondary and not allowed if they pose any interference or negative impacts upon the agricultural 

use of the land. The minimum lot size and building locations in this zone shall be of a size to allow for economically 

viable agricultural uses without affecting surrounding properties adversely.  

2. Uses. Permitted and conditional uses permitted in the Agricultural Zone are identified in section 117-51, land use 

table.  

3. Height regulations. There shall be no height restrictions in the Agricultural Zone, except as may be imposed by 

state or federal regulations. Wind turbines and communication towers have specific height restrictions as outlined 

in chapter 109, articles III and V.  

4. Setback and lot line requirements. The following are setback and lot line requirements for the Agricultural Zone:  

1. Minimum lot width. 250 feet.  

2. Front yard. No building or structure shall be erected nearer than 50 feet from the right-of-way line of the 

street. Notwithstanding the setback in subsection (b)(1) of this section, if the property abuts a major or 

minor arterial roadway, the setback shall be no less than 60 feet.  

3. Side yard. No building shall be erected closer than 10 feet to any side property line, except corner lots shall 

maintain a 50-foot side yard adjacent to the street which intersects the street upon which the building fronts.  

4. Rear yard. There shall be a rear yard having a depth of not less than 25 feet.  

5. Exceptions. Some setback exceptions exist for specific architectural features, as outlined in section 101-10.  

5. Area/density requirements.  

1. Agriculture owners may split off the original home site on any parcel of not less than one-acre from the rest 

of the farm ground for the purpose of selling the farm and retaining the home.  

2. Owner of a farm may sell off any parcel of not less than one-acre of land by attaching the deed restriction 

giving up the developmental rights on the balance of the 16 acres. Example: A one-acre lot would require 

the owner give up the development rights on the adjoining 15 acres; two-acre split would require the 

adjoining 14 acres be places under a developmental restrictions and so on. The parcel with the deed 

restriction shall state that on the deed and which parcel it is tied to. The two resulting parcels will each be 

counted as a parcel split. The original larger parcel can do one more such split then any further splits of the 

parcel will require platting. This is inclusive of the original parcel.  

6. Accessory uses. Accessory uses are permitted.  

7. Access to county roads. All access to county or state roads shall be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 

and follow all access policies and ordinances as set by the county. Multiple accesses will be discouraged and shared 

access will be encouraged under these policies.  

8. Animal clinics and hospitals, veterinary offices, and kennels. These will be located at least 300 feet from any 

residence including motels and hotels, except for an owner's residence. The county may modify these requirements 

if the animals are housed in soundproof structures that screen them from view of the abutting residential property.  

9. Bulk storage of flammable liquids and gases. Bulk storage of flammable liquids and gases will:  

1. Be located at least 300 feet from a residence, motel or hotel, except for an owner's residence.  

2. Be erected with the written approval of the fire authority having jurisdiction.  

3. Have suitable loading and unloading spaces and off-street parking facilities meeting the approval of the fire 

authority.  

10. Chemical, pesticide, and fertilizer facilities. These facilities will have adequate fire protection, storage area, 

handling and disposal as approved in writing by the fire authority having jurisdiction.  

(Prior Code, title 10, § 4.3; Ord. of 2011; Ord. No. 389, 10-11-2013)  

 

  

https://madison.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=Sec_117-52_Agricultural_(AG)_Zone


Sec 117-60 Transitional Agricultural (TAG) Zone 

1. Scope and purpose. The provisions of this section apply to the Transitional Agricultural (TAG) Zone. The purpose 

of this Transitional Agricultural (TAG) Zone is to provide for and protect residential lands of a single-family 

residential environment, located conveniently near urban centers, by providing for an area of transition from 

agricultural uses to residential. To provide for gardening and family recreational opportunities, the keeping of a 

limited number of livestock and poultry as set forth in subsection (b) of this section, and similar rural activities will 

be allowed on a limited scale. The minimum lot size and building locations in this zone must be such that water and 

sewer facilities and locations for the same can be easily provided on an individual basis on each lot without affecting 

surrounding properties adversely.  

2. Uses. Permitted and conditional uses permitted in the Transitional Agricultural Zone are identified in section 117-

51, land use table.  

3. Height regulations. Any building or structure or portion thereof hereafter erected which is not of an agricultural 

nature shall not exceed 2.5 stories or 35 feet in height unless a greater height is approved by conditional use permit.  

4. Setback and lot line requirements. The following are setback and lot line requirements for the Transitional 

Agricultural Zone:  

1. Minimum lot width. 250 feet.  

2. Front yard. No building or structure shall be erected nearer than 30 feet from the right-of-way line of the 

street. Notwithstanding the setback in this subsection, if the property abuts a major or minor arterial 

roadway, the setback shall be no less than 60 feet.  

3. Side yard. No building shall be erected closer than 10 feet to any side property line, except corner lots shall 

maintain a 30-foot side yard adjacent to the street which intersects the street upon which the building fronts.  

4. Rear yard. There shall be a rear yard having a depth of not less than 25 feet.  

5. Area/density requirements. There is no minimum lot area requirement, but overall development density shall be an 

average of at least 2 acres per lot or parcel. ..  

6. Accessory uses. Accessory uses are permitted.  

7. Access to county roads. All access to county or state roads shall follow all access policies and ordinances as set by 

the county. Multiple accesses will be discouraged and shared access will be encouraged under these policies.  

(Prior Code, title 10, § 4.11)  

Hearing Factors When Considering Zone Change – Madison County Code 102-1 

Zone change. The county code book, unified development code, pt. II, sets forth guidelines for development in the 

county. In considering zone changes, the following standards may be deliberated upon to determine whether or not to 

allow a zone change:  

1. To protect property rights and enhance property values;  

2. To provide for the protection and enhancement of the local economy;  

3. To ensure that important environmental features are protected and enhanced;  

4. To encourage the protection of prime agriculture lands for the production of crops;  

5. To avoid undue concentration of population and overcrowding of land;  

6. To ensure the development on land is commensurate with the physical characteristics of the land;  

7. To protect life and property in areas subject to natural hazards and disasters;  

8. To protect recreational resources;  

9. To avoid undue water, air and noise pollution;  

10. To promote trails and recreation;  

11. To ensure safety from fire and provide adequate open spaces for light and air; and/or,  

12. To implement the county comprehensive plan.  

 

 

  

https://madison.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=Sec_117-60_Transitional_Agricultural_(TAG)_Zone


Proximity Map 

 

Light green indicates current TransAg zoned properties.  

Dark Green indicates current Ag zoned properties.  

Blue indicates the property proposed for zone change in the application. 

 

 

 

Staff Report prepared by Gary Armstrong, Planning Administrator 



APPLICATION 
  



PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT
134 E Main Suite 208 Rexburg ID 83u140

Phone (208)359-6207
PZ@co.madison.id.us

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION

SUBMITTALS:
The review process will require a minimum of l5 working days. Once application is fully
reviewed and deemed complete, a public hearing will be scheduled for the next available hearing
date. Applicants will be required to meet with Planning and Zoning Administrator before the
Public Hearing will take place. All information called for on this form shall be required for a

complete application and no incomolete application will begin the review process. Completed
application must also be accompanied with the subsequent fee of$600.00.

APPI-IC.{\]IO\\ \ER CO\TACT INFOR\IATIO\

Name 6recrt- 6*rt*
Phone ZttX- b?d -3//J
Email tral$hAD f*Hl

lo &ty bi i<wro

A P PI,ICA N'I':

OWNER:
Nanrc 6*tul
Phonc
Email
Mailing
Address:

,
*if !ou are not the owner ofthe property applying for an administrative permit, please attach aD affidavit of

legal interest to t'our application. *

REQUIRED ATTATCHMENTS

Signature: I ldrl^^ Date: / l*t

Additional ottachments ntav be required on u tase to rase basis

E Proof of Ownership - this information can be obtained from a title company

tr Legal Description - this information can be obtained from a land surveyor.

E Parcel Map - available from the Madison County Asscssor's oflce
E Fee Payment

PURPOSE: Chapter l0l Article l Set. 101-11

Mailing
Address:

Signature: I WfrL Date: / L-rt



7,O\I] CHANGI.] HEARING FACTORS

Zone changes. The county code book, unified development code, pt. II, sets forth guidelines
for development in the county. In considering zone changes, the following standards may be
deliberated upon to determine whether or not to allow a zone change:
l. To protect property rights and enhance property values;
2. To provide for the protection and enhancement ofthe local economy;
3. To ensure that important environmental features are protected and enhanced;
4. To encourage the protection of prime agriculture lands for the production of crops;
5. To avoid undue concentration ofpopulation and overcrowding ofland;
6. To ensure the dcvclopment on land is commensurate with thc physical characteristics of

the land;
7. To protect life and property in areas subject to natural hazards and disasters;
8. To protect recreational resources;
9. To avoid undue water, air and noise pollution;
10. To promote trails and recreationt
I l. To ensure safety fiom fire and provide adequatc open spaces for light and air; and./or,
12. To implement the county comprehensive plan.

Nothing herein shall preclude the consideration of additional
planning components or subjcct matter

PARCEL I}lFORMATIO\

Ifany que.stions are not applicable, please insert N/A on corresponding line

Site Address (if applicable)

City: Statc: ;-d Zip

Parcel Number(s)
vo

Subdivision: Lot: Block
Zone:

lain'lIs the arcel located in the Floo
Does the property contain any streams, rivc
wetlands'l

, lakes or ,4
Can access be vided to the new ccl S

,)

Can Madison County sctbacks be met for any structurcs to
be constructed ?

culrure activitics?aIs the Par ccl ad accnt to an

See Madison Countv Unilied Development Code Ch. 102 Hearing F'actors

U ablsla /Lr'r/y'
,4a/rt e

64.u, -/
Total Acreage

Comp Plan Designation:

Y2.,

)/e ,
Yet



NATURE OF REQUEST

What zone is the property currently
zoned? Aq
What is the existing use of the
property involved? h il taurv hrye
What is the proposed zoning you are
requesting? 4u* e"
Pleasc dcscribe thc reason for
applying fbr a zone change'i hal,t hL f* o/tlJr,n
How will the use ofthe propcrty
change ifzone change is permitted? 1,t+y alolw rt^*tlillta,t ")hL+ 

hldll A4,u2
Hou, will this zone chan e tnl t the surroundin schools?

How is the zone chan uest in accordance with the Com rehensive Plan'le

lndicate if the watcr, septic. fire. police, streets,/roads and schools that scrvc the arca are adequatc to servc any
development under the proposed zoning. lfthey are not adequate to serve. what measures are proposed to
assurc that blic thcilitics and sen.iccs will be adc uate?

Is the site I to accommodate the sed us and bu lferin u iredetl0 Ll t

Indicate the surroundin land use

Will increased traffic reduce the viabili of exis uses?

ermitted within the zone be com tible with the area?

The commission may address other points than those discussed above, hut a narrative
addressing at least these applicable poinls will assist in processittg 1,our applicatktn.

I consent to this application and allow Planning and Zoning staffto cnter thc property for site
inspections related to this application.

Signature of Applicant , YI&E Date: /2-cL-1
Signature of Owner I '1,0"- Date: /z-ca-a5

OFFICE USE ONLY

Pennil #: Date Fee Received:
?t-,8- N\ $fu0S."' \Llt.tlts

Will all uses

Fee Total:



lnfi,Ilrt acti!7
iEIXrio. foer, ! t€
Lt;,j&l C.CrslI io. oi htr: 2lEt5k:LltEaY
llttt.n i-llla Lt
E qEr-at W, dX

QUITCLAIM DEEI)

ORDER NO.: 624556

FOR VALT'E RECEIVED,

B.n R- Rlgby, r mrrdcd mrtr dcdhg rltt hb lolc lnd reprr.tc prop.rty rnd
Chcrl Rlgby, hL rporrc

do(es) hercby convcy, relcasc, rcmisc and forwcr quitctaim unto

Jlcob Cl.rll Don.hoo rnd Ledlc Arn Don.hoo, hnrb.Dd rDd wlfe

whose cun€ot address is: ll3l N 4000 W, Rcxbnrg, ID 83,140

the following dcscribed preuriscs:

s€e sttachcd lcgal dcscription

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD thc ssid prqnises, urto the said grantees, hcirs and assigns
forevet.

Dstdt Octobct 24,2022

B*.,1 7
Bsrt R. Rigby

Strtc of ldsho l st
County of Madilor)

Oo Of Hk Ury ofOctober,2022, bcfore me, the uaderrlgned, r Notrry publlc hr
rrd for sdd strtg persotrdly .pp€.red Brrt R. Rjgby rnd Cheri R.igby, hown or
id.ndfied to mc to be thc person(s) whose nrme(r) is/are subscribed to the wlthln
Itr3trumenL
IN WITNESS WmREOF, I hrve hercurto sct my hrrd rBd rmxcd my offlclEt 3erl
lhc dry rDd yer In this ccrtilicrte firrt sbove writtcn.

the

ATISON EANIA

Notrry Public for thc Strte of ldrho
Reslding ot;
Commilsiotr ErDircs: Regidim h 51. Antlnw. lD- ---(Gtm;'".Exoireslt.52023

Slote ot tdoh;
Lonhrssion *2 t4

Thir inttruDant llL{
.t an accodrrFdadoo onty.
tt h.. nol bacn al.t|dird

a. to lti €r..otiort lnNr.blllty
or .tfecl on litl..

1ha^'.t€rnlr,-
chirr Rigby 0 -/



ForycSIiJ_

B.'\RT RIGBY to JACOB DONAIIOO
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Part of the Solheast % of Section 16, Township 6 North, Range 39 East Boisc Meridian" Madison
County, Idaho, described as follows;

Commcncing at the Southeast corner of Scstion 16, Township 6 North, Range 39 East and ruaning thencc
N 00''00'29" W along the East line of said Sectioq 658.E0 feet; Thence S 89o'50'55" W,.140.00 feet ro a
sa 5/8inch reinforced iron rod, marked PLS 13933, also being the True Polnt of Beginning;

Thencc continuing S E9"50'55" W along an fencc line,352.0l' liret to a set 5/8 inch Rcbar, marked PLS
13933;

Thence N 45o37'M" E, 492.46 feet to a sa 5/8inch rcinforccd iron rod marted PLS 13933;

Thcnce S 00o00'29' E, 167.51 feet to a s€t s/Eioch reinforccd imn rod, marted PLS 13933;

Thence continuing S 00'0029" E, 176.00 feet to the Polnt of Beglnnlng.

Parcel containing + 1.39 Acrcs

RKB/ MJI{

August 15, 2022

F:\Rexbu*\Oldf i*stftrwr,isc Srwcy\, t -12{9 t4\022 J.cob Doirhoo[rgstsueob Drnahoo Lot Sptit L€gal.d<,cx



Taeil.g"* .$

PURCHASE RECEIPT

Madlson County Plannlng and Zoning
134 East Main Street, Suite 208
Rexburg lD 83440
(208)3s$6207
OTC Local Ref lD: 90421546
1212212023 11:32 AM

Your credit card or bank statement will show a charge lrom lVladisonP&z.

Status:

Customer Name:

Typ€:

Credit Card Number:

Items

APPROVED

BARTON/BRECK

MasterCard

8658

Quantity TPE Order lD Total Amounl

PH-Zone Change Application

Note: Barton

61303188 $600.00

PH-Comprehensive Plan Amendment 1 61303188 $600.00

Total remitted to the L4adison County Planning and Zoning $1,200.00

Access ldaho Fee 1 61303188 $36.00

Total Amount Charged $1,236.00

Signature

To offer lhe convenienc€ of using your bank card, a service fee of 3% has been added to your
transaction. This fee goes to our third-party provider, ldaho.gov. The County does not keep any portion
of this fee.

1



WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE 
 



January 12,2024

GaryArmstrong
Madison County Planning & Zoning
134 Main Street, Suite 208
Rexburg, lD 83440

Sincerely,

Marilyn R asmussen
Rigby Family Holdings, LLC

Dear Mr. Armstrong:

I am just writing this note to thank you for answering my questions to the best of your
ability prior to a public hearing regardtng the zone change request made by Mr. Eiarton.
My brother Brent Rigby has met with Mr. Barton and he assured him that our roadway to
our property will not be used or obstructed in the future. Maintaining access to this
property is our only concern and I think my brother has resolved this issue. we will
respect the decision ot the commission knowing that the decision that is made will be in
the best interest of the neighborhood, the County and Mr. Barton.

JAN 1 7 2024

Madison Countu
P&Z and Building

RECEIVED




